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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Green Woods Palaces
and Resorts Private Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that
date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022 and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing ("SA”s) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI”") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinigit: .
these matters. "
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor
process. i
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial stateme

presentation

D et
AT |- /}




kh ]}fSFV[]}f\lgleék (j()., Continuation Sheet....

'CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Governunent in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as:
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of th
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting,.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge

and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
centity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultim
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beh
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; \
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. The compliance
with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

Place: Hyderabad For Rambabu & Co.,
Date:09.05.2022 Chartered Accoyntants
Reg. No.002976

@Y@

GVL Prasad
Partner
UDIN: 22026548 AQJICG9629 M.No.026548
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limitedof even

date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

i In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment
were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the Management during the year and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregat
each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.
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In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical
verification of inventories.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Z 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b)of the
Order is not applicable.

iii.  During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, other sub
clauses under this clause are not applicable.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, during the year, the Company has neither made
any investments nor has it given loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the
relevant provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act (“the Act”) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Ience, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vii.  In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There were no statutory dues which have not been deposited as on March 31,
on account of disputes.
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viii. ~ There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix.  (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us by the
Management term loans were applied for the same purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short -term basis have been used for the long - term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us by the Management and
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate Companies. The Company has not raised any
funds from any entity or persons on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associates. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

x.  (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.  (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) During the year the company has not received any whistle blower complaints (and upto
the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of t
is not applicable.

Nephten \¢

edpee, lf\éfﬁ\g&‘FS)v




| RAMBABU & CO,, Continuation Sheet....
| "CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

xiii.  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

xv.  In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors, and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. ~ On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilit
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get disd)é;ﬁ%é
the Company as and when they fall due. (<
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xx.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant
to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

Place: Hyderabad For Rambabu & Co.,
Date:09.05.2022 Chartered Accduntants
Reg. No.002976S 7,
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Patrtner

UDIN: 22026548AQJICG9629 M.No.026548
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited of

even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Green Woods
Palaces and Resorts Private Limited(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial state
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting,.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the ICAL
Place: Hyderabad For Rambabu & Co.,
Date:09.05.2022 Chartered Acco

Reg. No.0829769 |

QV Prasad
Patrtner
UDIN: 22026548 AQJ1CG9629 M.No0.026548




Green Woods Palnces and Resorts Private Limited
Balance Shect ag at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INI, unless otherwise stated)

Particculars Note As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Assels
MNon-eurrent Assels
Praperty, plant and equipment
Fangible Assels 3 1,47.97.78,004 1,70,99,27,903
Ripht to 11se Assers 3 16,41,57,274 17,67,76,778
Capital work-in-progress 3 - 11,80,000
Intimgible Assets 3 4,46,28,087 4,99,72,205
Financial Assels
Uther hmnneial assels 4 39,76,28,771 24,21,08,172
Lieferred tax assets (net) 5 21,94,70,653 16,39,32,780
Tax nsset 6 2,27,61,841 1,04,96,915
Other nssets 7 53,86,442 6,19,71,803
Total Non-current Assets 2,33.38,11,072 2,41,63,66,556
Current Assets
Inventories 8 2,40,14,350 2,25,16,677
Financial Assers
Tracle recevables 9 4,35,32,369 5,19,86,137
Cash ond cash equivalents 10 22,40,26,053 2,54,84,371
Bank balances other than above 11 16,08,92,617 14,81,99,446
Lonng and advances 12 40,80,796 29,45,088
Other financinl assets 4 5,35,45,265 3,48,40,766
Other assits 7 1,74,74,691 3,13,88,798
Total Current Assels 52,75,66,141 31,73,61,.283
Totul Assels 2.86.13.77.213 2,73,37,27.839
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Shire capital 13 75,01,00,000 75,01,00,000
Other Lejuity 14 (53,87,46,547) (37,94,97,772)
Total Equity 21,13,53,453 37,06,02,228
Liabilities
Non-eurvent Linbilitics
Finaneinl Linbilities
Borrowings 15 : 2,04,17,41,642 1,78,57,86,449
Other financial Liabilities 16 50,000 20,000
lease Linbility 39 17,06,92,662 17,68,74,424
Provisions 17 44,69.415 72,07,312
Tatal Now-current Linhilities 2,21,69,53,719 1,96,98,88,185
Current Linbilities
Financial Linbilities
Horrowings 15 17,18,77,724 15,75,28,260
Trade Payables - Total outstanding Dues of:
- Small and Micro emerprises 18 1,55,57,741 3,15,13,999
- Creditors other than small and micro enterprises 18 19,22,34,742 16,04,21,685
Other fnancial Liabilities 16 1,12,62,809 85,18,641
Lease Linbility 39 1,84,06,246 1,91,12,242
Other liabilities 19 2,37,30,779 1,61,42,599
Tutal Current Linbilities 43,30,70,041 39,32,37,426
Total Liabilitiey 2,65,00,23,760 2,36,31.25,611
Total Equity and Linbilitics 2,86,13,77,213 2,73,37,27.839
Corporate information 1 -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For RAMBABU & CQ.,
Chartered Accountapt
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income

Revenue from Operations 20 86,58,71,553 43,66,93,990

Other Income 21 3,51,59,721 4.76.82.697
Total Income 90,10,31,274 48,43,76,687
Expenses

Food and Beverages Consumed 10,31,15,863 5,21,69,388

Employee Benefit Expense and Payment to Contractors 22 20,92,78,289 13,41,67,659

Finance Costs 23 19,48,06,238 21,48,50,799

Depreciaition and Amortisation Expenses 24 25,38,48,790 25,41,44,520

Other Operating and General Expenses 25 38,09,80,825 19,46,66,853
Total Expenses 1,14,20,30,005 84,99,99,219
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (24,09,98,731) (36,56,22,532)
Exceptional Item (Reversal of Lease rental & Security deposit MIAL) 21(A) 2,56,31,998 -
Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items (21,53,66,733) (36,56,22,532)
‘I'ax Expenses

Current Tax (Minimum Alternative Tax) -

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT Credit) entitlement - -

Deferred Tax Liability/ ( Asset) 26 (5,56,99,253) (8,91,10,402)
Total (5,56,99,253) (8,91,10,402)
Profit/(Loss) after tax (15,96,67,480) (27,65,12,130)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 34 5,80,084 7,70,424

Tax on above (1,61,379) (2,14,332)
Other Comprehensive income, net of tax 4,18,705 5,56,092
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (15,92,48,775) (27,59,56,038)
Earnings Per Share 27 (2.13) (3.69)
Corporate information |
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For RAMBABU & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

#) Equity Share Capital

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

e

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued and subscribed Number of Shares Amount
As at April 01, 2021 7,50,10,000 75,01,00,000
As at March 31, 2021 7,50,10,000 75,01,00,000
As at March 31, 2022 7,50,10,000 75,01,00,000
1) Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Other Total
surplus comprehensive
income
Retained earnings | Remeasurement of
defined benefit
obligation
Balance as at April 01, 2020 (10,45,52,151) 10,10,417 (10,35,41,734)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation - 5,56,092 5,56,092
Loss for the year (27,65,12,130) - (27,65,12,130)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - (38,10,64,281) 15,66,509 (37,94,97,772)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation - 4,18,705 4,18,705
Loss for the year (15,96,67,480) - (15,96,67,480)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (54,07,31,761) 19.85.214 (53.87.46,547)
Corporate information Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For RAMBABU & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

’7 Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash flow from operating activitics
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (21,53,66,733) (36,56,22,532)
Adjustments For:
Diepreciaition and amortisation expenses 25,38,48,790 25,41,44,520
FFinance Cogts « On borrowings 17,25,41,948 19,08,40,871
- Others - 3,53,592
- On leage Liability 1,91,12,242 1,96,48,450
Lense Rent 10,65,290 42.61,160
Amortisation of Transaction Costs 11,31,880 11,31,880
Interest Income (2,38,60,017) (3,32,68,526)
Credits Balances Writlen Back (19,60,032) (23,44,374)
Waiver of Concessional fee (80,45,847) (1,07,19,930)
PProvision for Doubtful Debts 3,52,471 -
Cash llow from opeartions hefore working capital changes 19,88,19,992 5,84,25,111
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (Incrense) in Trade reeeivables 81,01,297 4,94,74221
Decrease / (Inerease) in Inventories (14,97,673) 37,20,125
Decrease / (Inerense) in current loans and advonces (11,35,708) (2,05,527)
Decrense / (Inerease) in other non-current and current linancial assets 1,18,70,343 2,48.88,335
Deerease [ (Increase) in other non-current and gurrent assets 6,83,02,298 (1,85,53,655)
(Deorease) / Increase in Trade Payables 1,78,16,832 96,33,781
(Pecrense) / Increase in non=current provisions (21,57,813) 2794314
(Deerease) / Increase in other non-current and current financiol ligbilities 15,37,453 (43,24,007)
(Decrease) ! Inéresse in other non=current and current labilities 75,88,180 (55,70,675)
Cash generated from operations 30,92,45,201 12,02,82,023
Direct Taxes Paid/(Refund received) (1.22.64.926) 1,53,63.262
Net cash flow from Operating activities 29,69,80,275 13,56,45,285
Cash Now from Investing Activitics
Agquisition of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets (45,55,269) (20,20,578)
Fixed Deposits with banks - Made during the year (30,62,36,157) (22,59,21,605)
- Maturity proceeds received during the year 10,99,14,256 25,63,35,968
Interest received 2,13,93,306 2,29,17,014
Net Cash Used in lovesting Activities (17,94,83,864) 5,13,10,799
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
[nterest paid (17,13,05,233) (20,83,99,235)
Loans Availed/Repayment of Non-current borrowings 27,03,04,657 (5,19,71,144)
Lease liability paid (1,79,54,153) (1,09,46,737)
Net Cash Used In Finuncing Activities 8,10,45,271 (27,13,17,116)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in eash and cash equivalents 19,85,41,682 (8,43,61,032)
Cash and Cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 2,54,84,371 10,98,45,403
Cash and Cash equivalents as at end of the year 22,40,26,053 2,54,84,371
Corporate information Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date

For RAMBABU & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1

General information

Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited was incorporated on May 04, 2001 under the Provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a Joint venture Company between Greenridge Hotels and Resorts LLP and
TAJGVK Hotels and Resorts T.imited. The Company is primarily engaged in the husiness of owning and uperating, the
(hotel under brand name “Taj Santacruz”) by entering into "Hotel Operating Agreement" with Indian Hotels
Company Limited.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 09, 2022

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

y Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. The
accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except certain
financial instruments measured at fair value other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India
requires management, where necessary, to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into current and Non-current

The company presents its assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification;

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

¢) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Cm'réq n
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

vi.

vii.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, Based on the services rendered and their realizations in cash and cash equivalents, the company has
ascertained its operating cycle is 12 months for the purpose of cutrent / non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

Changes in Accounting treatments and disclosures as per new and amended standards

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 containing Ind AS 116 "Leases" which replaces the Ind AS 17 "Leases" and related
interpretations and guidance. Ind AS 116 sets out principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying assets is of low value.

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 "Leases" using modified retrospective approach as per paragraph C8 of
Appendix C of Ind AS 116. Refer Note 39 on measurement, Recognition and Impact due to transition to Ind AS
116 "Leases".

Exceptional Items

Items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence
that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and
amount of such items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or
service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns
and discounts.

Revenue from contract with customer

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets: Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the
performance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is
recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided
as per the contract with the customer.

Space and shop rentals: Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for
retails and office at the properties. These contracts for rentals are generally of short term in nature. Revenue is
recognised in the period in which services are being rendered.

Other Allied services: In relation to laundry income, communication income, health club income, airport
transfers income and other allied services, the revenue has been recognised by reference to the time of service
rendered.

Membership Fees: Membership fee income majorly consists of membership fees received from the loyalty
program and Chamber membership fees. Income is earned when the customer enrolls for membership programs.
In respect of performance obligations satisfied over a period of time, revenue is recognised at the allocated
transaction price on a time-proportion basis.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist
of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

)
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

viii.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e, only the
passage of time is required before the payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial asscts in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Contract liabilities

A eonfract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays a consideration before the Company transfers services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable rate of interest.

Claims
Insurance claims are recognized as and when they are settled / admitted.

Export Incentives
Export Incentives from Government authorities are recognised in income statement when there is no significant
uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection and amount can be measured reliably.

Inventories

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a
Weighted Average basis) or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost includes the fair
value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and other
expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the
cost of purchase.

Property Plant and equipment

a. Property Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of credit availed in respect of any taxes, duties less
accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use. Financing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes
substantial period of time to get ready for intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period
up to such assets are ready for their intended use. Expenditure directly relating to construction/erection activity
is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as part of the construction
cost to the extent such expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto.

Direct expenditure during construction period attributable to the cost of assets under construction is considered
as capital work in progress and indirect expenditure is included under expenditure during construction period
pending allocation.

b. Subsequent expenditure incurred on existing fixed assets is added to their book value only if such
expenditure increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond their previously assessed standard of
performance.

¢. In the transition to Ind-AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognized as of April 1, 2015 (transition date ) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible assets
a. Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of credit availed in respect of any taxes and duties, less acgumulated

wamortization. Computer software is classified under “Intangible Assets”. 4 pBU @
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
b. In the transition to Ind-AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognized as of April 1, 2015 (transition date ) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

xi.  Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amoun( substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life
prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets, in
whose case the life of the assets has been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support,

etc.

Plant and machinery : 10 to 20 years
Electrical installations and equipment i 20 years
Hotel Wooden Furniture : 15 years

Non - wooden furniture and fittings . §years

End User devices- Computers, Laptops, etc : 6 years

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.The rates currently used for amortizing intangible
assets are as under:

Computer software: 6 years

Xii. Leases

Effective April 1, 2019 the company has applied Ind AS 116 which replaces Ind AS 17 Leases.

Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is or
contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative standalone prices and applies the lease
accounting model only to lease components. The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received.
] They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Xiil.

Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term,
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or
lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-substance fixed” payments
are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain that it
will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the Company is
reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any lease
modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which guarantee
a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-substance
fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which are ‘in-
substance fixed” are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments are
presented as follows in the Company’s statement of cash flows:

* short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments that are not
included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from operating activities;

* payments for the interest element of recognised lease liabilities are included in ‘interest paid’ within cash
flows from operating activities; and

* payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from
financing activities

Lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Foreign Exchange Transactions
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

Initial recognition: On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction.

Conversion: As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency are restated at the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Xiv,

XV.

Exchange Difference: Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, on reporting of such
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expense in the year in which they arise.

Retirement Benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plan:
Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare
Fund are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity:

Gratuity to employees is covered under Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme. At the reporting date,
Company’s liability towards gratuity is determined by independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method which considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement
and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Obligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance
Sheet date on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government bonds are consistent with
the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
* The date of the plan amendment or curtailment and
* The date that the Group Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in statement
of profit and loss:

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences

At the reporting date, Company’s liability towards compensated absences is determined by independent
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method which considers each period of service as giving rise
to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
Actuarial gain and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense. Obligation is
measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined by
reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the
Government bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets,
which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, is initially carried under expenditure
incurred during the construction period and the borrowing cost till the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use is added to the cost of those assets.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in wludl lhcy are
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Xvi.

Xvil.

Xviil.

Taxes on income
Tax expense comprising of current tax and deferred tax are considered in the determination of the net profit or

loss for the year.

a. Current tax: Provision for current tax is made for Income-tax liability estimated to arise on the profit for the
year at the current rate of tax in accordance with the Income-tax Act, [961.

b. Deferred 1ax: Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income
tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

c. Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit: Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only
when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in
accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the ICAI, the said asset is created
by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement.

Earnings per share

a. Basic earnings per share: Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
after tax attributable to equity share holders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.

b. Diluted earnings per share: Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
year after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
including equity shares which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares
unless they are considered anti-dilutive in nature.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Xix.

XX.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project fulure cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections
in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rafe can he
justified.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceeds its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity.

The Company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its existence in the financial statements if the
inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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XXii.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-tcrm
deposits and warrant account with banks for unclaimed dividend.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Debt instruments at amortized cost

* Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

* Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
or as loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

XXiil.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognized as
well as through the LIR amwitizalion process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
xxiv  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitics, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assels or
linbilities uffected in futurc periods. The ecstimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when
the financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Judgements, estimates and assumptions which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Provisions and Contingency
The Company has assessed the probable unfavourable outcomes and creates provisions where necessary. Where

these are assessed as not probable or where they are probable upon a contingency, they are disclosed as
contingent liability.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Based on future projections of taxable profit and MAT, the Company has assessed that the entire MAT credit
can be utilised.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the
specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the aging of the
receivable balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems them not be collectible. =
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Other financial assets

Interest Accrued

1,64,54,917

’Panticulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-current

Secured, considered good

Deposits - Others 51,44,106 2,19,22,956
Balances with Banks in deposits (with maturity period of more than

12months)

: Margin Money Deposits (refer note below) 9,61,06,497 9,71,06,497
: Fixed Deposits 27,99,23,251 9,52,94,521

2,77,84,198

Total

Total 39,76,28,771 24,21,08,172

Current

Other Receivables 1,76,10,309 1,26,13,868

Contract Assets 1,16,57,419 89,08,496

Export Benefit Receivable 64,78,220 86,85,306

Interest Accrued 1,77,99,317 46,33,096

Total 5,35,45,265 3,48,40,766

Margin money deposits with Banks are against guarentees given by them.

Note 5: Deferred tax assets (net)

’PTu'ticulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Asset

Unabsorbed losses 19,35.90,498 14,88,70,185

Employee Benefits 12,43,391 20,05,074

Lease Liability 69,38,763 53,44,191

Security Deposits - 70,09,669

Minimum Alternative Tax credit entitlement 3,65,76,761 3.65,76.,761

Total Defered Tax Asset 23,83,49.413 19,98,05,880

Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciaition and Amortisation on Property, plant and equipment

and Intangible Assets 1,88,78,760 3,58,73,100

Total Deferred Tax Liability 1,88,78,760 3,58,73,100

Net Deferred Tax Asset 21,94,70,653 16,39,32,780

Note 6: Tax asset (net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-current

Tax deducted at source (net of Provision) 2,27,61,841 1,04,96,915

2,27,61,841

1,04,96,915




Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Other assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31,2021

Non-current

Advance lease rental - 5,54,53,481
Unamortised transaction cost 53,86,442 65,18,322
Total 53,86,442 6,19,71.803
Current
Unsecured considered good
Deposit with Public Bodies and Others 40,000 40,000
Advance to Suppliers 12,41,186 32,30,870
Prepaid Expenses 87,75,379 89,02,066
Balances with Govt Authorities 62,86,246 1,38,22,822
Advance lease rental - 42,61,160
Unamortised transaction cost 11,31,880 11,31,880
Total 1,74,74,691 3,13,88,798
Note 8: Inventories
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stores and Operating Supplies 82,16,818 98,44,279
Food and Beverages 1,57,97,532 1,26,72,398
Total 2,40,14,350 2,25,16,677
Note 9: Trade Receivables
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 4,35,32,369 5,19,86,137
Trade receivables credit impaired 17,47,937 26,25,143

4,52,80,306 5,46,11,280
Provision for credit impaired receivable (17,47,937) (26,25,143)
Total 4,35,32,369 5,19,86,137
Reconciliation of provision for credit impaired receivable
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 26,25,143 26,43,883
Change during the year (8,77,206) (18,740)
Balance at the end of the year 17,47,937 26,25,143
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)
No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severelly or jointly with any
other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member respectivily, other than as disclosed in note 31.

[Aucing of 'I'rade Receeivables

Outstanding for following periods from due of payment

Trade Receivable Unbilled | Less than 6 | 6 Months - More than
Receivables Months 1Year 1-2 Year | 2-3 Years 3 Years Total

Undisputed - Considered Good 3,48,59,313 39,56,938 | 10,02,938 536,225 403,55 414
Undisputed - Credit Impaired 3,10,245 2,49,524 4,60,201 | 2584,096 13,20,726 49,24.792
Sub Total - 3,51,69,558 42,06,462 | 14,63,139| 3120321 1320726 | 4,52,80,206
Provision for Impaired Receivables - 35,105 392,006 | 13,20,726 17,47 .837
Sundry Debtors 3,51,69,558 | 42,06,462 | 14,28,034 | 27,28,315 4,35,32,369
Note 10: Cash and Cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash on Hand 15,04,547 12,38,036
Balance with Banks in: current accounts 17,55,11,033 1,08,15,865

: fixed deposits (with original maturity of less than 3months) 4,70,10,473 1,34,30,470

Total 22,40,26.053 2,54,84,371
Note 11: Other Bank Balances
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Balance with Banks in Fixed Deposits (maturity between 3 to 12 16,08,92,617 14,81,99,446
months)
Total 16,08,92,617 14.81.,99.446
Note 12: Loans and Advances
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Other Advances 30,11,948 25,72,144
Other Receivables 10,22,417 2,32,276
Staff Advances 46,431 1,40,668
Total 40,80,796 29,45,088




Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 13; Share Capital

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Authorised Share capital
76,000,000 (2021: 76,000,000) Equity Shares of INR.10/- each 76.00.00.000 76.,00.00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
75,010,000 (2022: 75,010,000) Equity Shares of INR.10/- each 75,01,00,000 75,01,00,000
Total 75,01,00,000 75,01,00,000
i) Reconciliation of Equity shares
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000
the year o
Shares outstanding at the end of the 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000

year

i) Shareholders iolding more than 5% Lquity Shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Number of Shares % of Holding Number of Shares % of Holding
held held
Greenridge Hotels & Resorts LLP 3,82,60,000 51.01 3,82,60,000 51.01
TAJGVK Hotels & Resorts Limited 3,67,50,000 48.99 3,67,50,000 48.99
Total 7,50,10,000 100.00 7.50,10,000 100.00

iii) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to equity Shares including declaration of dividend
The company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 10/- per share with one vote per each equity share. The
company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential creditors. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note 14: Other equity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability

Balance at the end of the year

(37,94,97,772)

(10,35,41,734)

(15,96,67,480) (27,65,12,130)
4,18,705 5,56,092
(53,87,46,547) (37,94,97,772)
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise Stated)

Note 15: Borrowings

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Non-current
Secured term loans from Banks 2,21,36,19,366 1,94,33,14,709
Less: Current maturities (17,18,77,724) (15,75,28,260)
Total 2,04,17,41,642 1,78,57,86,449
Current
Current maturities of long term borrowings 17,18,77,724 15,75,28,260
Total Borrowings 2,21,36,19,366 1,94,33.14,709

i) Secured term loans from Banks comprise of INR 77.35 crores (2021 INR 84.95 crores)from Central Bank of
India, INR 61.18 crores (2021 INR 67.12 crores) from Federal Bank and INR 38.51 crores (2021 INR 42.26
crores) from State Bank of India and carrying interest at 9.10% per annum.

ii) The Company availed INR 26.62 crores (2021: Nil) of short term loan from Federal Bank, INR 17.70 crores
(2021: Nil) of short term loan from State Bank of India under the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme
(ECLGS 3.0) notified bythe Government of India, to meet the working capital requirements and repayable in 48
equalted monthly installments after 24 month moratorium from the date of disursement, at an interest rate of 7.95%
per annum.ECLGS 3.0 loan are secured by second charge on the assets charge for the term loans.

iiiy Above Term Loans are secured by:

(a) First charge on all moveable assets, present and future, purchased out of the proceeds of the loans; ranking pari-
(b) First charge on amounts lying in certain designated bank accounts, including charge on all moneys, receivables
and balance in the escrow account; ranking pari-passu

(c) Second charge on current assets of Taj Santacruz Hotel; ranking pari-passu

(d) Assignment of all the rights, title and interests of the Company in, to and under all assets of the project and all
project documents and all other contracts relating to the project, to which the Company is a party.

iii) Term Loans from Banks are repayable in 45 structured quarterly instalments commencing from January 01,
2017

Net Debt Reconciliation:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Non Current Borrowings

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,94,33,14,709 1,99,52,85,853
Cash Flow
:from WCTL (ECGLS 3.0) 44,32,00,000 -
:Loan Repayment (17,28,95,343) (5,19,71,144)
Balance at the end of the year 2,21,36,19.366 1,94,33,14,709
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 16: Other Financial Liabilities

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particculars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current
Contractors Deposit 50,000 20,000
Total 50,000 20,000
Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 12,36,715 -
Other Payables 29,33,566 24,61,441
Other Liabilities 14,28,299 3,92,971
Creditors for Capital expenditure (other than small and micro 56,64,229 56,64,229
enterprises( (refer note 30)
Total 1,12,62,809 85.18,641
Note 17: Provisions
Particculars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
: Gratuity 6,66,966 32,06,088
: Compensated absence 38,02,449 40,01,224
Total 44,69,415 72.07,312
Note 18: Trade PPayables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Dues to: Small and Micro enterprises (refer note below) 1,55,57,741 3,15,13,999
: Creditors other than small and micro enterprises 19,22,34,742 16,04,21,685
Total 20,77,92,483 19,19,35.684

Agpeing of Trade Paybles

Outstanding for Followin

g Periods From due date of Payment

Trade P bl
rade Payables Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than Toal
Year 3 vears
Sundry Creditors- MSME 1,59,49,601 - - 1,59,49,601
Sundry Creditors-Others 5.44,47,145 4,26,224 52,918 15,09,893
Other Trade Payables 7.08,37,851 1,96,56,641 -
Accrued Expences 431,111,770 12,30,900 5.69.539 4,49,12.209
Grand Total 18,43,46,367 | 2,13,13,766 | 6.,22.457 15,09.893 | 20,77,92.483
Note 19: Other Liabilities
Particculars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Income received in advance 6,70,675 1,99,972
Contract Liabilities 1,76,60,807 1,20,55,882
Statutory dues 53,99,297 38,86,745
Total 2,37,30,779 1,61,42,599
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 20: Revenue from Operations

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Room revenue 46,90,21,756 24,14,96,359
Food and Bevarage Sales 35,03.41,712 18.47.44,200
Membership Fee 5,72,189 5,63,151
Other Operating Income 4,59,35,896 98,90,280
Total 86,58,71,553 43,66,93,990
Note 21: Other Income
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Common Area Maintenance Charges 12,47,840 12,76,200
Gain on Foreign Exchange flucturations 45,985 73,667
Interest on; Fixed Deposits 2,32,30,246 2,71,30,377
: Income Tax Refund - 22,03,724
: Others 6,29,771 39,34,425
Excess Provision and Credits Balances Written Back 19,60,032 23,44.374
Waiver of Concession fee 80,45,847 1,07,19,930
Total 3,51,59,721 4,76.82,697
Note 21(A}): Exceptional Item
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Other Income ( Reversal of Lease rental & Security Deposit MIAL ) 2,56,31,998 -

Note 22: Employee Benefit Expense and Payment to Contractors

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 9,05,77,197 6,67,95,077
Company's Contribution to Retirement and Other Funds 59,60,774 58,70,932
Deputed staff salaries and Reimbursement of expenses (on personnel 5,08,70,022 2,93,65,991
Deputed to Company)

Payment to Contractors 4,31,70,363 2,25,63,913
Staff Welfare Expenses 1,86,99,933 95,71,746
Total 20,92,78,289 13.41,67,659

Note 23: Finance Costs

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest: on Borrowing 17,25,41,948 19,08,40,871
: others - 3,53,592
: on Lease Liability 1,91,12,242 1,96,48,450
Other borrowing costs 31,52,048 40,07,886
Total 19,48,06,238 21,48,50,799
Note 24: Depreciation and Amortisation
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 23,54,95,009 23,55,12,992
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 57,34,277 60,12,024
Depreciation on Right to Use Assets 1,26,19,504 1,26,19,504
Total 25,38.48,790 25,41,44,520
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 25: Other Operating and General Expenses

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Operating Expenses
Catgring Supplies 1,15,72,419 74,60,511
Linen and Room Supplies 2,93,75,883 1,40,37,548
Other Supplies 21,22,462 8,42,824
Fuel, Power and Light 10,03,52,006 4,98,14,593
Repairs to: Buildings 1,41,24,806 49,95,045
: Machinery 2,20,82,942 1,24,01,899
: Others 18,03,698 6,84,923
Linen, Uniform Washing and Laundry Expenses 33,17,076 16,02,888
Payment to Orchestra Staff, Artistes & Security 1,14,95,543 77,32,338
Guest Transportation 61,65,707 62,60,334
Travel Agent's Commission 2,77,12,322 87,73,588
Credit Card Commission 58,15,945 20,09,496
Other Operating Expenses 1,82,75,048 40,49,845
25,42,15,857 12,06,65,835
General Expenses
Rent 88,02,873 1,38,34,959
Licence Fees 735 25,546
Support and Outsourced Services 47,43,521 77,23,585
Rates and Taxes 76,24,498 32,29,772
Commission 1,87,923 3,32,712
Insurance 25,51,346 28,53,727
Advertisement and Publicity 1,71,38,479 48,49,305
Printing and Stationery 33,32,591 15,74,922
Passage and Traveling 12,35,988 1,68,833
Travelling and Conveyance 3,33,023 3,33,515
Hire Charges 11,63,462 10,20,126
Communication Expenses 45,05,542 22,14,295
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3,52,471 -
Professional Fees 3,95,09,201 1,80,90,561
Donation 10,000 20,000
Operating and Management fees 2,81,49,152 1,19,75,923
Auditors' Remuneration: as Auditors 7,50,000 7,50,000
: for Tax Audit 75,000 75,000
: for GST Audit - 70,000
: for certification - 10,000
Directors' Sitting Fees 6,20,000 4,20,000
Other Expenses 56,79,163 44,28,237
12,67,64,968 7,40,01,018
Total 38,09,80,825 19,46,66,853
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26: Tax Expenses

) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March
31,2022 and March 31, 2021 are

Statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Tax -
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit - ¥
Deferred Tax (5,56,99,253) (8,91,10,402)
(5,56,99,253) (8,91,10,402)

Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income tax effect on Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (1,61,379) (2,14,332)
(1,61,379) (2,14,332)
b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Profit Before Tax
Enacted tax rates
Computed expected tax expense

Employment benefit obligations
Reversal of Provision for doubtful debts
Others

Total

(24,09,98,731)
17.47%
(4,21,07,298)

1,01,352
1,53,265

(36,56,22,532)
17.47%
(6,38,81,569)

1,34,593
3,274
1,12,676

(4,18,52,681)

(6,36,31,026)

In view of loss incurred by the Company in the current year, no current tax expense was recognised,

¢) Reconciliation of Deferred Tax :

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability at the beginning of the year 16,39,32,780 7,50,36,709
Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in;
: statement of profit and loss 5,56,99,253 8,91,10,402
: other comprehensive income (1,61,379) (2,14,332)
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability at the end of the year 21,94,70,653 16,39.32,780
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27: Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Partlculars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mavrch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity share holders (15,96,67,480) (27,65,12,130)
Weighted average number of Equity shares 7,50,10,000 7,50,10,000
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted (per sharc) (2.13) (3.69)
Since, the company does not have any dilutive securities, the basic and diluted earnings per share are same.
Note 28: Commitments and Contingent liabilities not provided for
Commitments
Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
The estimated amount of coniracts (to the extent purchase orders issued) remaining to be )
executed on capital account, net of advances
Contingent liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Bank Guarantees to Customs Department

9.61,06,497

9.71,06,497

Claims by IHCL against the company not accepted as on the balance sheet date

6,65,01,793

6,51.51,311

Note 29. Impact of Covid on business: The business improved during the financial year under review with removal of all restrictions on

inter-state and foreign travel, relaxations by various State Governments and the increase vaccination dri

ve across the country. The company

achieved higher revenues across the business segments viz, rooms, Banquets and restaurants compared to previous quarters of the current

financial year.

The Company has also assessed the impact of COVID-19 in preparation of these financial resulis,
assessment of liquidity and going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial

including but not limited 1o its
and non-financial assets and

impact on

revenues and costs. The Company has considered internal and external sources of information and has performed sensitivity analysis on

the assumptions used and based on current estimates, expects
results of the Company have been prepared on a going concern hasis,

Note 30. Dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

to recover the carrying amount of these assets. Accordingly, the financial

i) Disclosure of dues to micro and small enterprises under Trade Payables and Current Liabilities is based on the information available with
the Company reparding the status of the suppliers as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED)

Act, 2006,

if) Details of total outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of {he
accounting year*

1,55,57,741

3,15,13,999

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act,
2006 along with the amounts of payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

3.52,370

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for (he
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under MSMED Act, 2006

*The dues to MSME enterprises as at 3 1st March, 2022 are not older than 45 days.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)
Note 31. Disclosure per Ind AS 24 on Related Party transactions

Disclosure of transactions and balances of related parties as required under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 24 “Related Party
Disclosures™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are given below:

Name of the Related Party

Greenridge Iotels and Resorts LLP
TAJGVK Hotels and Resorts Limited

Welatlongliip

Joint Venturer

Orbit Travel and Tours Pvt Ltd

Aragen Life Sciences Private Limited

GVK Power Goindwal Sahib Ltd

GVK Emergency Management & Research Institute
GVK Power & Infrastructure Ltd

Srilakshmi Enterprises

Enterprises in which Directors / their relatives
are interested (with which transaction are
made)

Key Managerial personnel
Smt. Shalini Bhupal
M. Krishna R Bhupal

Non-Whole Time Directors
[Dr. G.V.K Reddy

Smt. G. Indira Krishna Reddy
Mr. N. Anil Kumar Reddy
Mrs. Shriya Bhupal

Mrs. Indukuri Mallika Reddy

Chief Executive Officer
Managing Director

Non-executive Chairman
Director

Independent Director
Director

Director

Transactions during the ycar

Nature of Transaction and Related Party For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and Other Employee Benefits
Chief executive Officer 89,10,322 56,75,161
Sitting Fee
Non- Executive/ Independent Directors 6,20,000 4,20,000
Revenue from Operations
GVK Power Goindwal Sahib Ltd - -
GVK Emergency Management & Research Institute - -
GVK Power & Infrastructure Ltd 5,383 9,459
Travel Expenses
Orbit Tours and Travels Pvt Ltd - 75,804
Technical Fees
Srilakshmi Enterprises 2,59,77,158 1,31,28,576
Deputed staff
TAJGVK Hotels and Resorts Limited 7,41,436 4,92,252
Balances Payable
Nature of Transaction and Related Party As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Technical Fees
Srilakshmi Enterprises 2,47,21,776 1,83,97,672
Deputed staff
TAJGVK Hotels and Resorts Limited 6,164 4,20,969
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Balances Receivable

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Nature of Transaction and Related Party

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Security Deposit

Trade receivables

GVK Power Goindwal Sulib Lud - 1,70,728

GVK Emergency Management & Research Institute - -

GVK Power & Infrastructure Ltd - 9,459.00

'AJGVK Hotels and Resorts Limited 36,942 2,50,307

Balances payable to Indian Hotels Company Limited:

Particulars s As at

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Management Fees Payable 7,34,68,526 6,69,10,160

Reimbursement Fees Payable 1,82,01,498 48,26,283

Deputed Staff Dues Payable (Net) 4,00,77,030 3,94,64,225

Curtrent Account Dues Payable (iNet) 23,45,478 89,33,003

Gross payable 13,40,92,532 12,01,33,671

Less:

Deferred Management Fees as per HOA 4,35,36,732 1,35,86,677

Claims ugains! the company not accepied 6,65,01,793 6,51,51,311
2,40,54,007 4,13,95,683

Defined contribution plan

Amount recognized as an expense in staiement of profit and loss on account of

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provident Fund 46,52,735 43,17,502
Employee State Insurance 6,43.857 3.04.175

Note 32: Defined benefit plan
Gratuity

The Company has a funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service pets a graluity

on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as

1972 with total ceiling on gratuily of INR 20 Lakhs.

per the provision of the Payment of Gratuil y Act,

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognized in

the Balance Sheet for the respective employee gratuity plans.

a. Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Service Cost 13,06,596 14,83,226
Interest on Net Defined Benefit liability / (asset) 1,89,224 1,34,324
Total 14,95,820 16,17,550
b. Recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Changes in financial assumptions (1,65,773) 29,545
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience adjusment (4,31,370) (8,19,493)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 17,059 19,524
Total (5,80,084) (7,70,424)




Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

c. Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31,2021
Upcening Detined benetit Obligation 40,'75,141 31,73,245
Current Service Cust 13,06,596 14,83,226
Interest Cost 2,64,289 2,08,618
Remcasurement due to:
Actuarial loss / (gain) changes in financial assumptions (1,65,773) 29,545
Actuarial loss / (gain) changes in demographic assumptions - E
Actuarial loss / (gain) experience adjusment (4,31,370) (6,51,799)
Benefits Paid (3,54,150) (1,67.694)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 46,94,733 40,75,141
d. Reconciliation of the plan assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening fair value of plan assets 8,69,053 8,14,283
Employer contributions 34,60,635 1,67,694
Interest on plan assets 75,065 74,294
Remeasurement due to: - -
Actual return on plan assols less inlerest on plan assets (22,836) (19,524)
Benefits paid (3,54,150) (1,67,694)
Closing fair value of plan assets 40,27,767 8,69,053
¢. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 46,94,733 40,75,141
Closing balance of fund 40,27,767 8,69,053
Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 6,66,966 32,006,088
The principul assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave benefit obligation in the above plans are as under:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount Rate 6.85% 6.60%
Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) | Mortality (2012-14)
Ult Ult
Salary Escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Sensitivity Analysis:

Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes in demographic assumptions.
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary
escalation rate. The following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points.

For the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Discount Rate Salary Escalation Discount Rate Salary Escalation
Rate Rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -6.56% 7.34% -6.93% 7.76%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 7.24% -6.70% 7.68% ~7.06%

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other

changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no chan

used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Compensated Absences:

(Al amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

The Company's liability towards un-funded leave encashment is determined by independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method which considers each period of service as giving rise (v an additional unil of benefit entitlement and measurcs each unit

separately Lo build up the linal obligation,

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Expenses charged to statement ot profit and loss 2,79,808 16,44,902
Particulars As at As at
_ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 38,02,449 40,01,224

The discount rate and salary escalation rate is the same as adopted for gratuity liability valuation.

The estimates of future salary increases (which has been set in consultation with the company) takes account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Note 33: Segmental Reporting

The Company’s only business being hoteliering. disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Accounting Standard (AS)
108 "Segmental Information" notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. There is no
geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India.

Note 34: Risk Management, Objectives and Policies

Risks and Concerns

Economic Risks: Hotel business in general is sensitive to fluctuations in the economy. The hotel sector may be unfavourably affected by
changes in global and domestic economies, changes in local market conditions, excess room supply, reduced international or local demand
for hotel rooms and associates services, competition in the industry, government policies and regulations, fluctuations in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates and other natural and social factors. Since demand for hotels is affected by world economic growth, a global
recession could lead to a downturn in the hotel industry.

Socio-Political Risks: The Hotel industry faces risk from volatile socio-political environment, internationally as well as within the country.
India, being one of the fastest growing economies of the world in the recent past, continues to attract investments. However, any adverse
events such as political instability, conflict between nations, terrorist attacks or spread of any epidemic or security threats to any countries
may affect the level of travel and business activity.

Sccurity Risks: The Hotel industry demands peace at all times to flourish. The biggest villain in South East Asia has been terrorism
supplemented by political instability. Subsequent to the Mumbai terror attacks in November 2008, the hotel industry has invested
substantially on security and intelligence. The security concerns have been duly addressed instilling confidence in the customer by
providing international standards of safety.

Company-specific Risks

Heavy Dependence on India

Risk of wage inflation: The hotel industry needs quality employees and with demand for the same improving across the industry, the
Company feels that wage inflation would be a critical factor in determining costs for the Company. Thus, your Company will continue to
focus on improving manpower efficiencies and creating a lean organization, while maximizing effectiveness in terms of customer service
and satisfaction, which is an area of great importance for your Company.

Foreign Exchange Risk: Your Company may be impacted by the fluctuation of the Indian Rupee against other foreign currencies. To
mitigate this risk the Company has migrated to single currency billing in Indian Rupees.

Note 35: Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to financial risk such as Market Risk (Interest Rate Risk, fluctuation in foreign exchange rates and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The general risk management program of the Company focuses on the unpredictability of the financial
markets and attempts to minimize their potential negative influence on the financial performance of the Company. The Company
continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes measures to limit it to acceptable levels. The Board of Directors have the overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk i.c. interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments of the
Company affected hy market risk invlude borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 3 1, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in markel variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post- retirement obligations;
provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the
financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2022 and March 3 1,2021.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk arise from long term borrowing of the company with variable interest rates (Bank one year MCLR plus spread).
Although the spread is fixed, it is subject to change at fixed time interval or occurrence of specified event(s). Management monitors the
movement in interest rate and, wherever possible, reacts to material movements in such rates by restructuring its financing arrangement.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on loating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase in Interest| Decrease in profit | Decrease in Interest | Increase in profit
Rate before tax Rate before tax

For the year ended March 31, 2022 0.5% per annum (96,14,454) (-0.5)% per annum 96,14,454

For the year ended March 31, 2021 0.5% per annum (1,01,82,980) (-0.5)% per annum 1,01,82,980

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk arising from credit exposure to customers and the counter-party will default on its contractual obligations.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy customers/ corporate to minimise collection losses. Credit Control
team assesses the credit quality of the customers, their financial position, past experience in payments and other relevant factors. Advance
payments are obtained from customers in banquets, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, advances to suppliers, cash and short-term deposits and interest receivable on deposits
represents company's maximum exposure to the credit risk. No other financial asset carry a significant exposure with respect to the credit
risk. Deposits and cash balances are placed with Schedule Commercial banks.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets. The Company also holds advances as security from customers to mitigate credit risk.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have difficulty in raising the financial resources required to fulfil its commitments. Liquidity
risk is held at low levels through effective cash flow management. Cash flow forecasting is performed internally by rolling forecasts of the

Company's liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational requirements, to fund scheduled capex and debt
repayments and to comply with the terms of financing documents.

The Company primarily uses short-term bank facilities in the nature of bank overdraft facility to fund its ongoing working capital
requirements,
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities base

(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)
d on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars | On demand Less than 1 Year 1to 5 years S years and above Total

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Borrowings - 17,18,77,724 1,29,53,63,482 74,63,78,160 2,21,36,19,366
Dicies: sancal : 1,12,62,809 50,000 - 1,13,12,809
habilities

Trade and other 30.77.92.483 i . i 20,77.92,483
payibles N

Total 20,77,92,483 18,31,40,533 1,29,54,13,482 74,63,78,160 2,43,27,24,658
IFor the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

Borrowings - 15,70,28,260 1,11,63,74,539 66,99,11,910 1,94,33,14,709
t_)lh.f.ll' ) linancial ) 85,18,641 20,000 - 85,38,641
liabilities

I'rade and other 19,19,35,684 ) i 19,19,35,684
payables

Tolal __19,19,35,684 16,55,46,901 1,11,63,94,539 66,99,11,910 2,14,37,89,034

Note 36: Capital management

‘The Company's policy is

to maintain strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development of business.

The Company manages Capital structure by balanced mix of debt and equily, The Company's capital structure is influenced by the changes
in the regulatory frameworks, government policies, available options of financing and impact of the same on liquidity position.

The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The table below shows the Gearing
ratio as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings 2,21,36,19,366 1,94,33,14,709
Trade Payables 20,77,92,483 19,19,35,684
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents (38,49,18,670) (17,36,83.817)
Net Debt 2,03,64,93,179 1,96,15,66,576
Equity Capital 21,13,53,453 37,06,02,228
Equity Capital and Net Debt 2,24,78,46,632 2,33,21,68,804
Gearing Ratio 90.60% 84.11%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

2021.

Note 36: Fair Values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Com

processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31,

carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

pany’s financial instruments, other than those with

Particulars Carrying Values Fair Values
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 45,11,74,036 27,69,48,938 45,11,74,036 27,69,48,938
Trade Receivables 4,35,32,369 5,19,86,137 4,35,32,369 5,19,86,137
("ash and Bank Balances 38,49,18,670 17,36,83,817 38,49,18,670 17,36,83,817
Total 87,96,25,075 50,26,18,892 87,96,25,075 50,26,18,892
Financial Liabilities
Non-current Borrowings 2,21,36,19,366 1,94,33,14,709 2,21,36,19,366 1,94,33,14,709
Other non-current financial Liabilities 50,000 20,000 50,000 20,000
Trade Payables 20,77,92,483 19,19,35,684 20,77,92,483 19,19,35,684
Other current financial Liabilities 1,12,62,809 85,18,641 1,12,62,809 85,18,641
Total 2,43,27,24,658 2,14,37,89,034 2,43,27,24,658 = V9 789,034
e b :
et . <[ o c
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Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR, un

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2021:

less otherwise stated)

’7 Particulars Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant

active markets Observable Inputs | Unobservable Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Fair value of financial

liabilities

Non-current 31-Mar-21 1,78,57,86,449 - - 1,78,57,86,449

Borrowings

Other non-current 31-Mar-21 20,000 - - 20,000

financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 31-Mar-21 19,19,35,684 - - 19,19,35,684

Other current financial 31-Mar-21 85,18,641 - - 85,18,641

Liabilities

Note 39: Leases
As Leasec

(A) Carrying value of right of use assets as the end of the reporting peroid by class

Buildings as at Buildings as at

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Balance 17,67,76,778 18,93,96,282
Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 - -
Adjustment on account of change in terms of agreement - -
Depreciation charge for the year (1,26,19,504) (1,26,19,504)
Balance 16,41,57,274 17,67,76,778
(B) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Maturity analysis Ason 31" Ason 31*

March, 2022 March, 2021

Less than one year 2,60,00,000 2,60,00,000
One to five years 10,40,00,000 10,40,00,000
More than five years 20,80,00,000 23,40,00,000
Total lease liabilities 33,80,00,000 36,40,00,000
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 18,90,98,908 19,59,86,666
Current 1,84,06,246 1,91,12,242
Non-Current 17,06,92,662 17,68,74,424

(C) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Interest on lease liabilities 1,91,12,242 1,96,48,450
Depreciation charged during the year 1,26,19,504 1,26,19,504
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities - -
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets - -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 77,37,583 95,73,799
Lixpenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low value ass - -
(D) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Total cash outflow for leases 1,79.54.153 1,09,46,737




Green Woods Palaces and Resorts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Note 40: In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the company, the financial and other assets are expected to realize in the ordinary
course of business approximately the value at which they are stated in accounts.

Note 41; Balances in the personal accounts of customers are subject to confirmation and reconciliation,
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